1960

United Steelworkers of America et al v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

The appellants here seek to review orders of the Utah Industrial Commission which affirmed decisions of its Appeals Referee, denying claimants above eligibility for unemployment benefits.

Initially the Unemployment Compensation Division awarded benefits effective November 22, 1959, to Kennecott's technical laboratory employees, represented by Steelworkers Local #5486. Similar awards allowing benefits to Kennecott clerical employees at the Utah smelter, represented by Steelworkers Local 4329 were made effective December 28, 1959. Both awards, however, were reversed by a decision of the Appeals Referee on January 15, 1960 and March 10, 1960. All other claimants were denied benefits by the Unemployment

Compensation Division and Appeals Referee; timely petitions to the Board of Review were filed; and in each case, on July 8, 1960, the Appeals Referee's decisions denying benefits to all claimants were affirmed.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nineteen separate local and autonomous labor unions had working agreements and contracts between each union and Kennecott Copper Corporation, Utah Division, which expired by their terms on June 30 and July 31, 1959.

It will be necessary to designate these local unions through their contractual relationship with the company for easy reference.

United Steelworkers of America

Local 4413 represents 713 production and maintenance workers at the company's refinery.

Local 5120 represents 47 clerical workers at the company's refinery.

Local 4347 represents 1160 production and maintenance workers at the company's smelter.

Local 4329 represents 34 clerical workers at the company's smelter.

Local 5486 represents 35 laboratory and technical workers at the company's Arthur mills.

International Union of Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers

Local 392 represents 1398 production and maintenance employees at the company's Arthur-Magna mills.

Local 485 represents 1188 production and maintenance workers at the company's Bingham mine.

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

Local 1438 represents 68 power station employees at the Central Power Station.

Office Employees International Union

Local 286 represents 99 clerical and office workers at the company's Bingham mine.

Elvere R. Davis was employed as a carpenter in the company's mill and was a member of Local 392, Mine-Mill Union.

In addition to these unions, the company had working agreements with local unions: 692 Mine-Mill Local, 1845 Electrical Workers, Lodge 670 Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen & Enginemen, Lodge 506 Order of Railroad Carmen & Brakemen, Lodge 1045 Brotherhood of Railroad Carmen of America, Local 3 Operating Engineers, Local 1081 Electrical Workers, Lodge 568 Machinists, Lodge 155 System Federation, and Lodge 844 Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen.

Beginning in April, 1959, all unions involved attempted to negotiate new working agreements. When on August 1, 1959, all parties were still in negotiations, each of the former agreements was extended on a day-to-day basis to August 10, 1959. On this latter date, because of a strike called, the company ceased its operation, except for certain maintenance and supervisory work.

The history of bargaining between the separate locals and Kennecott Copper Corporation goes back to the late 1930's and was conducted on the basis of individual union bargaining. At times each of the local unions presented certain common bargaining demands such as in the field of health and welfare

benefits through a "Unity Council," but as each negotiation was concluded, separate contracts were signed by the company and each local union claiming bargaining rights. The particular contracts which are of record demonstrate that each union was the sole bargaining agent for the particular employees certified through the National Labor Relations Board election procedures.

There is some conflict in the testimony as to whether Electrical Workers Local 1438 ever formally struck the company or directly participated in the work stoppage. On October 31, 1959, Electrical Workers Local 1438, BR-235 (R. 017-018) advised the company it was not on strike, and, in turn, ordered the Unity Council not to list that local as one of the striking unions in their advertisements, publicity or demands to the company. Previously this local through its business manager, one T. E. Burke, had orally disaffirmed the local's involvement in the strike and mailed the letter to the company to verify the fact. The company's letter to this local on November 2, 1959, acknowledged that this local was not considered a striking union and effected a day-to-day extension of the old agreement. BR-235 (R. 018). Arrangements for the return of day-to-day people to the Central Power Station followed this exchange of correspondence, and provisions of the old contract were thus reinstituted for these electrical workers. Following the shutdown, the company halted power production and maintained its power needs through purchase from Utah Power & Light Company. By November 12, 1959, six or seven members of the Electrical Local had returned to work at the Central Power Station but the remaining 65 to 70 employees were not recalled until the total strike settlement around January 29,

1960. No employee of Local 1438 performed picket duties at any time and the returning employees crossed the picket lines after November 12th, BR-235 (R. 071). These workers continued on the job until the end of the strike. Local 1438 finally settled their new agreement with the company January 7, 1960. The company supplied power to its departments through purchases from the Utah Power & Light Company until January 29, 1960, maintaining that on the basis of the power necessary, the plant could be more adequately operated by power purchase and consequently took the position there was no work available for the 65 to 70 other members of this unit. Notwithstanding this disavowal of the strike, the resumption of day-to-day contract, and the return of men recalled by the company by November 12, the Unemployment Compensation Division ruled that the remaining 60-70 members were disqualified because of their participation in the strike.

Kennecott Copper Corporation's production activities in Utah prior to August 10, 1959, were carried on chiefly, as follows: the ore is mined at Bingham Canyon, Utah; then hauled by rail some 15 miles north to the concentration mills at Magna and Arthur, Utah; concentrates are transported to the smelter; and the main smelter product is taken to the refinery. The mills, smelter and refinery are all situated within a radius of about three miles. Prior to January 1, 1959, the smelter was owned and operated by the American Smelting & Refining Company, as it had been for many years previously. The smelter was purchased on that date by Kennecott and operated by the company thereafter.

The claimants here number in excess of 4,000 employees and are members of various separate and autonomous local

unions. The electrical workers are a trade union. The steel workers are an industrial union. Similarly, other workers belong to trade, craft and industrial unions. Some are affiliated with the AFL-CIO and others are not. Indeed, on many occasions historically the unions have battled each other for work jurisdiction rights. Some contracts provide for job evaluation while other contracts create job rate classifications. Insurance, health and welfare payments are maintained by different carriers and are under different programs. Hiring practices differ on the basis of plant and departmental requirements. The smelter has its superintendent, the refinery its superintendent, as do the mines and mills. Seniority practices differ with each contract. As to total plant shutdowns, particular plant seniority exists. As to advances in position, departmental seniority exists. Employees in the smelter cannot bump across to the refinery, nor can seniority be claimed between mine or mill, nor can departmental employees bump across departmental lines.

Negotiations to settle the strike were carried on between the company and the individual unions involved after August 10 with the assistance of federal mediators.

The following chart shows the date each union reached contract settlement with the company:

United Steel Workers of America

Local 4413	November 21, 1959
Local 5120	November 21, 1959
Local 4347	November 21, 1959
Local 4329	November 21, 1959
Local 5486	November 21, 1959

*International Union of Mine, Mill and
Smelter Workers*

Local 392	December 16, 1959
Local 692	December 16, 1959
Local 485	December 16, 1959

*International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers*

Local 1845	December 22, 1959
------------	-------------------

*Brotherhood of Locomotive
Firemen & Enginemen*

Lodge 670	December 24, 1959
-----------	-------------------

*Order of Railroad Carmen &
Brakemen*

Lodge 506	December 24, 1959
-----------	-------------------

*Brotherhood of Railroad Carmen
of America*

Lodge 1045	December 27, 1959
------------	-------------------

Operating Engineers

Local 3	December 30, 1959
---------	-------------------

Office Employees International Union

Local 286	January 4, 1960
-----------	-----------------

*International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers*

Local 1438	January 8, 1960
------------	-----------------

Local 1081	January 18, 1960
------------	------------------

International Association of Machinists

Local 568	January 27, 1960
-----------	------------------

System Federation

Lodge 155	January 27, 1960
-----------	------------------

*Brotherhood of Locomotive
Firemen & Enginemen*

Lodge 844	January 27, 1960
-----------	------------------

It will be noted above that the Steelworkers Locals' settlements on November 21, 1959, paved the way for the strike's end.

The smelter employees (Steelworkers Locals 4347 and 4329) following ratification of their agreements November 21, 1959, returned to work pursuant to a strike settlement agreement which called for their "prompt return," BR-236 (R. 033). Between November 22 and November 24, 1959, 708 smelter employees were back at work while 167 were scheduled off. All but 96 of the 1170 on the smelter payroll had returned to work by November 30, 1959 BR-236 (R. 059). The smelter clerical employees were called back according to seniority qualifications in line of work.

On the afternoon shift, December 1, 1959, pickets of the Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen & Enginemen and Order of Railroad Carmen and Brakemen were established at the smelter. This was the first date railroad brotherhood workers picketed the smelter property since the strike commenced August 10, 1959. However, smelter employees did not leave their jobs when the pickets appeared. The railroad brotherhoods commenced their picketing when it was learned that the company was attempting to utilize motor transport common carriers to move smelter products. The steelworkers, well aware that it would be futile to attempt to cross a picket line without inviting violence, respected the line. By December 25, 1959, the railroad brotherhoods signed strike agreements, withdrew the pickets and a general recall of the production and maintenance and clerical workers began at the smelter and refinery.

During the week ending January 10, 1960, there were 371 employees of Steelworkers Local 4347 laid off after completing five working days. Layoffs were according to plant seniority. The reason given was that the supply of ore at the smelter was exhausted. Each employee was given a blue separation slip supplied by the Unemployment Office, indicating the separation was due to a reduction in force due to strike at other plants, BR-236 (R. 058). During the week ending January 16, 1960, 550 additional production and smelter employees were laid off on the same basis. On January 18, 1960, there were 242 employees still working at the smelter on maintenance, cleanup and material inventory. On January 20, 1960, six junior clerical and technical employees from the smelter were told not to report to work because there was no work for them. They were given blue separation slips. On January 31, 1960, 274 employees remained on the payroll of the smelter. Between February 1 and 4, 1960, the employees laid off were recalled according to their plant seniority and returned to work. On February 4, 1960, there were 114 employees out of 1153 who had not returned to the smelter. All of the facts set forth above are digested from the record BR-236 (R. 058-061), Company Exhibits K and L.

The refinery story is digested at BR-236 (R. 040-042). Following ratification of the refinery contract, November 21, 1959, over 400 of the Steelworkers Local 4413 employees were called back to the refinery the week of November 23, 1959. The remaining 300 were not called back "because no work was available for them." BR-236 (R. 078). Refinery employees suffered the same fate as smelter employees when the railroad brotherhoods picketed the refinery early in De-

ember. With the removal of these picket lines December 25, refinery employees were also recalled BR-236 (R. 105-106). Two of the three refinery furnaces were closed January 4 to 15, 1960, with one continuing to January 29, 1960. Production and maintenance work was resumed at the refinery on February 8, 1960.

Anticipating vacation shutdown schedule for August 10-23, 1959, prior to the strike, company had stockpiled concentrates at the smelter which enabled the smelter and refinery to operate on a steady basis for a two-week period. BR-236 (R. 104). During December, 1959, and January, 1960, the company also shipped for refining approximately 9800 tons of copper anodes outside the state, BR-236 (R. 105).

The Mine-Mill unions were the second group to reach final contract agreement with the company on December 16, 1959, but none of these employees were recalled to work until February 6, 1960. Following contract ratification by Mine-Mill unions, other unions maintained picket lines at the mines and mills which were withdrawn as each local union settled its contract.

Final contract settlements were made January 27, 1960, with the Machinists, System Federation and Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen, paving the way for the return of Kennecott's employees to the mines and mills on February 6, 1960.

Steelworkers Local 5486, representing the unit of clerical and laboratory employees at the mills, also ratified and approved the contract with other steelworkers unions November 21, 1959, and expressed willingness to resume their former

work and perform their former duties at the Mills, BR-230 (R. 011), but as late as January 13, 1960, had not been recalled to their jobs. Originally the Unemployment Compensation Department declared these claimants eligible for unemployment benefits on the ground there was no work available for them. This decision was later reversed by the Appeals Referee and affirmed.

Elvere R. Davis (60-BR-231) maintains that he had been separated from his employment with the company three days before the strike and was given a blue separation notice BR-231 (R. 001). Mr. Davis' claim was also denied even though he had been separated from work prior to the strike.

Office Employees Local 286 are engaged in the mine area BR-237 (R. 083) and reached a contract settlement January 3, 1960. They had discontinued picketing within a few days after the strike commenced, August 10. Following contract ratification, Local 286 president contacted the Railroad Brotherhoods to seek passes through the picket lines but they were rejected.

The critical point found in all cases by the Appeals Referee is that all operations of Utah Division, Kennecott Copper Corporation, constitute a single establishment, on the basis of general and specific business administration and company control as well as proximity, integrality and interdependence of the company's various production departments. The Appeals Referee concluded in all cases that the entire Utah Division of the company consists of one establishment at which the claimants were last employed, BR-237 (R. 087), and further, it concluded that all claimants became unemployed due to a

stoppage of work which existed because of a strike involving their grade, class, or group at that establishment. The disqualification was applied to all claimants as of August 10, 1959, and continued through February 6, 1960. Timely appeals from the Board of Review's decision were taken in all cases.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

The Board of Review erred as a matter of law and fact in denying the claimants benefits in holding:

1. That Utah Copper Division, Kennecott Copper Corporation, operation in Utah constitutes a single factory or establishment within the meaning of the Act, Section 5 (d).

2. That the work stoppage did not end until February 6, 1960, when the plant resumed "normal operations" for:

- (a) The workers represented by United Steelworkers of America, Local 5486;**
- (b) The workers represented by International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 1438;**
- (c) The workers represented by International Union of Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers, Locals 485 and 392;**
- (d) The workers represented by International Union of Office Employees, Local 286;**
- (e) The workers represented by United Steelworkers of America, Locals 4329, 4347, 4413 and 5120; and**
- (f) Elvere R. Davis, individually, and as a member of his local union.**

3. That the unemployment of the claimants represented

by the local unions set forth in 2. (a through f above) was due to a work stoppage that resulted because of a strike involving his grade, class or group of workers at the factory or establishment at which he is or was last employed.

ARGUMENT

I.

The Board of Review erred as a matter of law and fact in denying the claimants benefits in holding:

(1) That Utah Copper Division, Kennecott Copper Corporation, operation in Utah constitutes a single factory or establishment within the meaning of the act, Section 5 (d).

Section 35-4-5(d) of the Utah Employment Security Act provides:

"5. An individual shall be ineligible for benefits or for purposes of establishing a waiting period:

"(d) For any week in which it is found by the commission that his unemployment is due to a stoppage of work which exists because of a strike involving his grade, class, or group of workers at the factory or establishment in which he is or was last employed.

"(1) If the commission, upon investigation, shall find a strike has been fomented by a worker of any employer, none of the workers of that grade, class, or group of workers of the individual who is found being a party of such plan or agreement to foment a strike, shall be eligible for benefits; provided, however, that if the commission, upon investigation, shall find that such strike is caused by the failure or refusal of any employer to conform to the provisions of any law

of the State of Utah, or of the United State, pertaining to hours, wages or other conditions of work, such strike shall not render the workers ineligible for benefits.

“(2) If the commission upon investigation, shall find that the employer, his agent, or representative, has conspired, planned or agreed with any of his workers, their agents or representatives, to foment a strike, such strike shall not render the workers ineligible for benefits.”

The pivotal and basic question of law to be resolved from all of the facts in this consolidated petition requires a determination as to whether Utah Copper Division, Kennecott Copper Corporation’s operations in Utah constitutes a single factory or establishment within the meaning of the act.

Claimants have carefully reviewed the prior rulings of this court annotated and cited, *Operating Engineers, Local Union No. 3, v. Industrial Commission of Utah*, 318 P. 2d 336, and conclude that the factual situation existing here distinguishes these cases from the prior cited cases which seem to settle the law.

In *Operating Engineers, Local Union No. 3, supra*, the court held that the strike of one union would be intended as a pressure beneficial to all 11 unions. The case answers only the question of the group involved and does not resolve the issue of “a single establishment.”

Nor do any of the cases therein cited, in our view, namely, *Iron Workers v. Industrial Commission*, 104 Utah 242, 139 P. 2d 208; *Olof Nelson Construction Company v. Industrial Commission*, 121 Utah 525, 243 P. 2d 951, and *Teamsters*,

etc., v. Orange Transportation Company, 5 Utah 2d 45, 296 P. 2d 291, answer the question raised here.

Those cases were decided on the basis of what constitutes a "group" within the meaning of the statute. To our knowledge the Utah Supreme Court has not definitely wrestled with the problem before of a "single establishment," and determination of this question is the basic predicate upon which the qualification or disqualification of the claimants involved must be decided.

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