1961

United Steelworkers of America et al v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE BOARD OF REVIEW DID NOT ERR AS A
MATTER OF LAW AND FACT IN DENYING THE
CLAIMANTS BENEFITS IN HOLDING:

1. THAT UTAH COPPER DIVISION, KENNECOTT
COPPER CORPORATION, OPERATION IN UTAH
CONSTITUTES A SINGLE FACTORY OR ESTABLISH-

MENT WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE ACT,
SECTION 5(d).

SECTION 35-4-5(d) of the Utah Employment Security Act provides:

"5. An individual shall be ineligible for benefits or for purposes of establishing a waiting period:

"(d) For any week in which it is found by the commission that his unemployment is due to a stoppage of work which exists because of a strike involving his grade, class, or group of workers at the factory or establishment at which he is or was last employed.

"(1) If the commission, upon investigation, shall find that a strike has been fomented by a worker of any employer, none of the workers of the grade, class, or group of workers of the individual who is found to be a party of such plan or agreement to foment a strike, shall be eligible for benefits; provided, however, that if the commission, upon investigation, shall find that such strike is caused by the failure or refusal of any employer to conform to the provisions of any law of the State of Utah, or the United States, pertaining to hours, wages or other conditions of work, such strike shall not render the workers ineligible for benefits.

"(2) If the commission upon investigation, shall find that the employer, his agent, or representative, has conspired, planned or agreed with any of his workers, their agents or representatives, to foment a strike, such strike shall not render the workers ineligible for benefits."

The question of whether or not the Utah Copper Division, Kennecott Copper Corporation, operations in Utah constitute a single factory or establishment within the meaning of the Act appears to us to be of secondary importance except as to the

effect such interpretation has on the matter or resumption of normal or substantial operations at the smelter or refinery.

The matter of what constitutes a single factory or establishment has never been decided by this Court under a similar factual situation. This Court did say in the case of *Olof Nelson Construction Company et al vs. Industrial Commission of Utah*, 121 Utah 525, 243 P 2d 951, in a case which involved multiple bargaining units:

“The strike was called for and on behalf of every employee covered by the agreement. It, therefore, directly involved all these claimants at each particular place of employment at which they were last employed. The strike was fomented by claimants through their duly authorized union representatives.”

Although the facts show that at times each of the local unions presented certain common bargaining demands in the field of health and welfare benefits through a “Unity Council,” the Referee and the Board of Review did not make specific findings that the various strike actions were taken to enforce the specific health and welfare demands of the Unity Council. It was recognized that except in the area of health and welfare benefits the designated unions were the sole bargaining agents for the respective units. It is significant that the respective local unions all effected a strike simultaneously on August 10.

We have reviewed numerous cases involving the definitions of single factory or establishment and in none of these cases are the facts parallel to the situation in the instant case. Had the facts in the other cases paralleled those in the instant case, the matter of whether or not a certain plant was part of the factory or establishment would not have been the salient factor

in the appeal. In the other cases there were no formal strikes at the premises where the benefit claimants were employed. In the instant case there were simultaneous strikes at each and every segment of the company operations. In the other cases the claims dated from the original work stoppage which came about by reason of the lack of materials flowing from the struck premises which were located at some distance from the struck operation. In the instant case the claims for benefits are made for weeks either during which time strikes were in active progress and picketing was being maintained or for weeks which followed a settlement of the particular local's contract.

As we pointed out, in the other cases the work stoppage resulted from a lack of materials and in the instant case the work stoppage was a direct result of the strike of August 10. Generally speaking, in the other cases the appeals involved out-of-state plants or plants which were forty or more miles distant. In the instant case the operation constitutes one industrial community—it is all within the state and within a limited integrated area. In the cases to be reviewed there was no voluntary act on the part of the employees who were appealing, and in the instant case all of the appellants or benefit claimants were either actively on strike on August 10 or were honoring picket lines and thereby involved in the strike. In the other cases there was no showing that there was a direct interest or direct participation by the appellants. In the instant case each of the appellants was a participating and interested party.

The foregoing factual analysis applies in almost all respects to the case of *Park vs. Appeal Board of Michigan*, decided on January 12, 1959, 359 Michigan 103, 94 N.W. 2d 407, which case is relied on to a substantial extent by Counsel for the Appel-

lants in his brief. That case held in substance that the "functional integration" of an employer's plants that are located in more than one state does not make the plant per se a "single establishment" within the meaning of the Law and that, therefore, the employees who were out of work in Michigan as a result of a strike against their employer in Ohio were not disqualified under the labor dispute provisions of the Law where such employees did not strike or picket but were laid off. The Court stated in discussing the question at issue:

" . . . We conclude that they turn upon the answer to a relatively simple legal question—does the term 'the establishment' as used in the Michigan Employment Security Act encompass both Ford plants in the vicinity of Detroit, Michigan, and the Ford Forge plant at Canton, Ohio, for the reason that the former cannot operate long without the latter."

To further point out that the Court recognized differences in factual situations in its rationalization of other cases, we quote:

"While the dictionary, the statute, and common sense all argue otherwise, we are urged that this Court in *Chrysler Corporation vs. Smith*, 297 Michigan 438, so defined 'establishment' as to require our holding as did the Circuit Judge and the Appeal Board that the Ford Detroit area plants in Michigan and the Ford Canton Forge plant in Ohio were all one 'establishment'.

"It might be noted at the outset that no such factual situation was involved in *Chrysler vs. Smith* as confronts us here. The plants there involved were all in one industrial community—the Detroit area; they were all located within eleven miles of one another; and they were all located in the State of Michigan. We deal

here with a disqualification argument applicable to nonstriking employees in three Detroit area plants all in Michigan where the strike inducing the unemployment occurred in another community 150 miles away and in another state."

The Court discussed the case of *Spielmann vs. Industrial Commission*, 236 Wisconsin 240, 295 N.W. 1, and said in answer to the Ford Motor Company's argument:

"Factually the Wisconsin case was even more remote from our present facts since the two plants there held to be one 'establishment' within the meaning of the Wisconsin statute were both in the same state though forty miles apart, were both under one general works manager, and were operated on one production schedule maintained by trucks scheduled between the two plants with deliveries so synchronized that a body built for one order at Milwaukee would meet the chassis for the same order built at Kanosha on the assembly line without intermediate storage.

"On the other hand, the record in the cases considered herewith indicates for all plants concerned entirely separate and distinct plant managers and plant production schedules as well as separate and distinct industrial relations and employment offices, employment seniority lists, local unions and local labor management agreements."

In the instant case we have one industrial community, i.e., the Utah Copper Division where the administration of the production operations is carried on under the General Manager of the Division with a Superintendent of Mines, Superintendent of Mills, Refinery Supervisor, Smelter Supervisor and Superintendent of the auxiliary units including the power station, precipitation plant and ore haulage system reporting directly

to the General Manager. The Utah Division consists of the open-pit mine separated only by a few miles from the two mills, refinery, precipitation plant, central power stations with a general company-owned haulage system operating between all segments of the operations. The Utah Division maintains a central accounting office in Salt Lake City, and all of the various plant operations and all payroll records and checks for all employees of the Utah Division are made up in this central accounting section in Salt Lake City. The purchasing, industrial and union relations, employment and employee training, engineering, quality control, safety, security, and production schedules all emanate from a central point in the division headquarters in Salt Lake City. As in the Spielmann case referred to in the Park case *supra*, the operations at all of the segments of the establishment are so integrated as to make the continuous flow of production each dependent upon the other. A stoppage of the flow of ore from the mine to the mills or a stoppage in the ore haulage operation would immediately shut down the entire establishment including the mine, the mills, the smelter and the refinery.

The appellants in their brief, pages 16 through 18, point out how in their opinion certain factors governing contracts, wages, etc., show the separateness of the segments of the operations of the Utah Division. In relating the argument to the situation at hand, we find that the facts are neither black nor white. The United Steelworkers of America negotiates contracts for Local 4413, production and maintenance workers at the refinery; Local 5120, clerical workers at the company's refinery; Local 4347, production and maintenance workers at the company smelter; Local 4329, clerical workers at the smelter; and

Local 5486, technical workers at the company's Arthur Mills. The International Union of Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers negotiates for Local 392, production and maintenance employees at the company's Arthur and Magna Mills, and Local 485, production and maintenance workers at the company's Bingham Mine. The facts show that the Unity Council presented demands dealing with health and welfare, and these demands included more than one segment of the company's operations. General hiring practices were dictated from the company's office in Salt Lake City even though the actual hiring of individuals may have been done at the several work locations. Labor contract negotiations were carried out not between the administrative personnel of the smelter or the refinery, etc., and the unions but between the unions and the company representatives located in Salt Lake City. The negotiations were done with the same general personnel for all of the segments of the operation. Safety and security measures in all of the operational segments were directed and controlled from the Salt Lake City office. There was one central source of payroll records and payrolls. The integrated nature of operations was apparently recognized by the various union locals themselves when they organized the Unity Council whose main purpose seems to have been to bring about some general uniformity in the provisions dealing with health and welfare.

As we pointed out in the beginning, the question of whether or not the Utah Division operations constituted one factory or establishment is a rather academic one in view of the fact that all the claimants herein were directly involved and participated in the strikes of August 10, which strikes were in effect at each and every segment of the company operations.

Had there been no strike at some of the work locations, then it would have been imperative that we determine first whether or not this was one establishment, and then second that we determine whether or not the claimants were involved in the strike.

However, even taking the most liberal interpretation of the cases defining the word, "establishment," we do not see where a substantial case can be made which would support the conclusion that the Utah Division was anything other than a single establishment. Its administration and operations and employee matters were so functionally integrated that we fail to see wherein the Appeals Referee or the Board of Review could have reached a different conclusion other than that within the meaning of the Law that this was a single "establishment."

ARGUMENT

POINT TWO

THE BOARD OF REVIEW DID NOT ERR AS A MATTER OF LAW AND FACT IN DENYING THE CLAIMANTS BENEFITS IN HOLDING:

2. THAT THE WORK STOPPAGE DID NOT END UNTIL FEBRUARY 6, 1960, WHEN THE PLANT RESUMED "NORMAL OPERATIONS" FOR:

- (a) THE WORKERS REPRESENTED BY UNITED STEELWORKERS OF AMERICA, LOCAL 5486;
- (b) THE WORKERS REPRESENTED BY INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS, LOCAL 1438;

- (c) THE WORKERS REPRESENTED BY INTERNATIONAL UNION OF MINE, MILL AND SMELTER WORKERS, LOCALS 485 AND 392;
- (d) THE WORKERS REPRESENTED BY INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OFFICE EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 286;
- (e) THE WORKERS REPRESENTED BY UNITED STEELWORKERS OF AMERICA, LOCALS 4329, 4347, 4413 AND 5120; AND
- (f) ELVERE R. DAVIS, INDIVIDUALLY, AND AS A MEMBER OF HIS LOCAL UNION.

We are concerned in this point of argument primarily with what did happen between August 10, 1959, and February 6, 1960, with reference to resumption of operations in the Utah Copper Division. We reserve any argument as to cause and effect of the unemployment during that period to our number 3 point of argument. The findings of the Board that the work stoppage did not end until February 6, 1960, can best be supported by a brief review of the facts regarding the resumption of work.

Anticipating a vacation shutdown schedule which was to commence August 10 and end August 23, 1959, for all employees except those employed at the smelter and refinery, the company had stockpiled concentrates at the smelter which would have enabled the smelter and refinery to operate on a steady basis for that two-week period. When the unions' intention to strike effective August 10 was announced, the company canceled the vacation schedule. On November 21, 1959, follow-

ing ratification of their new contract agreements, steelworkers Locals 4347 and 4329 commenced a return to work at the smelter to process the two-week supply of ore. Between November 22 and November 24, 1959, 708 smelter employees were back to work while 167 smelter employees were scheduled off. All but 96 of the 1,170 of the smelter workers had returned to work by November 30—BR-236 (R. 059). The smelter clerical employees were called back according to seniority qualifications as work became available.

On the afternoon shift of December 1, 1959, pickets were established by the Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen and Order of Railroad Carmen and Brakemen at the entrance to the smelter. The smelter employees who were working at that time remained through the work shift. They did not, however, return to work on subsequent shifts because of the picket line until December 25, 1959, when the pickets were withdrawn by the railroad brotherhoods who had by then signed new contract agreements. On November 25 a general recall of the production and maintenance and clerical workers began at the smelter to complete the job of processing the stockpile. During the week ending January 10, 1960, the company began laying off the smelter workers because of the exhaustion of the stockpile ore. The layoffs continued according to plant seniority so that on January 18, 1960, there were only 242 employees working at the smelter and these were engaged in the work of maintenance, cleanup, and material inventory. Some of the clerical and technical employees at the smelter were told on January 20 not to report for work until further notice because there was no work available for them. Those who were laid off because of the exhaustion of the ore supply and lack of work

were subject to recall on February 1 and shortly thereafter. By February 4, 1960, all but 114 workers out of the 1,153 had returned to work at the smelter. We are concerned here with the unemployment of those workers who were not kept on to do available maintenance, cleanup, and material inventory. There was no ore available at the smelter commencing with the week ending January 10. These facts appear in the record—BR-236 (R. 058-061) and Company Exhibits K and L.

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